
ONE HUNDRED 
AND THIRTY -SECOND MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on Monday, 9 February 1948, at 11 a.m. 

President : Mr. Charles MALIK (Lebanon) 

22. Report of the " ad hoc " Committee 
on the proposal for an economic 
commission for Latin America (E/ 
630 and E/630/Add.1) 

GENERAL DEBATE 

Mr. STOLK (Venezuela), speaking as Chairman 
of the ad hoc Committee on the proposal for an 
economic commission for Latin America, recalled 
the circumstances that had led to the establish­
ment of the ad hoc Committee and cited the Coun­
cil's resolution 70 (V), defining the Committee's 
terms of reference. 

The Committee had first considered the formal 
factors bearing upon the establishment of the 
proposed commission and had reached the conclu­
sion that they justified the setting up of the com­
mission. It had then considered the major causes 
of economic maladjustment in Latin America, 
in the light of the document prepared by the 
four Latin American countries represented on the 
Committee and the studies prepared by the Secre-
tariat. · 

In accordance with its terms of reference, the 
Committee had kept in touch with ILO, UNESCO, 
FAO, ICAO, the International Monetary Fund, 
the International Bank and the Interim Com­
mission of WHO. A representative of the Amer-

. ican Federation of Labor had also attended the 
meetings of the Committee. All those agencies 
had expressed their interest in Latin American 
affairs and their willingness to collaborate with 
the proposed economic commission. 

Constant contact had been maintained with the 
Pan American Union and its organs. The com­
position, functions, facilities and achievements 
of the Inter-American Economic and Social Council 
had all been examined. The documents of the 
meetings of the ad hoc Committee had been sent 
to the Pan American Union and information had 
been received of the work of a special committee 
of the Inter-American Economic and Social Coun­
cil which had studied the proposal for a Latin 
American economic commission within the frame­
work of the United Nations. 

The ad hoc. Committee was charged with as­
certaining the views of the Ninth International 
Conference of American States, which had been 
scheduled to meet at Bogota on 17 January 1948 
but was subsequently postponed until 30 March. 
While the Committee had thought that the views 
of the Conference were not indispensable to it­

. a fact previously recognized by the Economic and 
Social Council-it had nevertheless considered 

77 

CENT TRENTE~DEUXIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le lundi 9 fevrier 1948, iJ. 11 heures 

President : M. Charles MALIK (Liban) 

22. Rapport de Ia Co~pmission speciale 
chargee- d'etudier le projet de crea­
tion d'une Commission economique 
pour I' Amerique latine (E/630 et 
Ej630/Add.1) 

DISCUSSION GENERALE 

M. STOLK (Venezuela), parlant en tant que 
President de Ia Commission speciale chargee 
d'etudier Ie projet de creation d'une Commission 
economique pour !'Amerique Iatine, rappelle Ies 
circonstances qui ont donne lieu a Ia creation de 
cette commission et fait etat de Ia resolution 70 (V) 
du Conseil, oit est defini le mandat de Ia com­
mission. 

La commission a examine en premier lieu les 
questions de forme se rapportant a Ia creation de 
Ia commission envisagee, et elle a abouti a Ia 
conclusion que ces facteurs justifient la creation 
de cette commission. Elle a ensuite examine Ies 
principales causes de deseqriilibre economique en 
Amerique Iatine, en s'aidant du document prepare 
par les quatre pays de I' Amerique Ia tine repre­
sentes a Ia commission et des etudes preparees par 
le Secretariat. · 

Conformement a son mandat, Ia commission 
s'est tenue en rapports avec l'OIT, !'UNESCO, 
Ia FAO, l'OACI, le Fonds monetaire international, 
Ie Banque internationale et Ia Commission inte­
rimaire de !'OMS. De plus, un representant 'de Ia 
Federation americaine du travail a assiste aux 
seances de la commission. Toutes ces institutions 
ont manifeste de !'interet pour les questions d' Ame­
rique Iatine et se sont declan!es disposees a colla­
borer avec la commission economique envisagee. 

La commission s'est tenue en liaison permanente 
avec !'Union panamericaine et les organismes qui 
en dependent. Elle a etudie Ia composition et les 
attributions du Conseil interamericain economi­
que et social, Ies services qu'il peut rendre et les 
resultats qu'il a obtenus. Les do~:;uments se rap­
portant aux reunions de la Commission speciale 
ont ete communiques a !'Union panamericaine, et 
Ia commission elle-meme avait regu des rensei­
gnements sur les travaux d'un comite special 
du Conseil interamericain economique et social 
qui avait etudie le pro jet de creation d'une Com­
mission economique pour I' Amerique latine dans 
Ie cadre de !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 

La Commission speciale a ete chargee de s'in­
former des vues exprimees a Ia neuvienie Confe­
rence internationale americaine, qui devait se 
reunir a Bogota le 17 janvier 1948, mais qui a 
ete remise au 30 mars. Tout eri considerant que 
Ies vues de la. conference. n' etaient pas indispen­
sables- comme I'avait reconnu precedemment le 
Conseil · economique et social - la commission 
n'en a pas moins estime qu'il serait utile de con-



that it would be useful to seek the opinion of the 
Pan American Union before reaching any definite 
conclusions. 

Accordingly, the ad hoc Committee had trans­
mitted copies of a preliminary report to the Pan 
American Union with a request for comments in 
the light of which it would be able to formulate 
its final proposals. In its preliminary report it 
had stated that it favoured recommending to the 
Economic and Social Council the establishment 
of an Economic Commission for Latin America 
similar to the Economic Commission for Asia and 
the Far East. Its principal task would consist 
in studying and solving the most urgent Latin 
American problems resulting from the economic 
maladjustment brought about by the war, such 
as the raising of the level of economic activity of 
the countries of Latin America ; the integration 
of Latin American economy with that of the rest 
of the world with a view to achieving world 
economic stability; and the co-ordination of its 
own work with that of the other regional and 
functional organs of the United Nations. 

In formulating the terms of reference of the 
proposed commission, the Committee had fully 
considered the viewpoint of the Pan American 
Union, in order to ensure the necessary co-ordina­
tion and distribution of work between relevant 
organs of the United Nations and the Inter­
American machinery. The Committee had taken 
great pains to ensure that there should be no 
unnecessary duplication of the functions of exist­
ing bodies. 

In a resolution dated 15 January 1948, the 
Inter-American Economic and Social Council, 
after due consultation with all the member govern­
ments of the Pan American Union, had stated 
that it supported " the immediate establishment 
of the proposed economic commission for Latin 
America . . . " while " retaining its present inde­
pendence and competence within the Inter­
American system ". 

The Committee had been great~y aided in 
reaching its final conclusions by Dr. Alberto Lleras 
Camargo, Director of the Pan American Union, 
whose statement was included among the annexes 
appended to the report. 

After full consideration of the factors bearing 
upon the setting up of the proposed commission, 
and of the '\iews of the Pan American Union, the 
Committee had reached the conclusion that the 
Commission should pay particular attention to 
what might be called " short-term " problems in 
Latin America, and emphasized the necessity 
for the fullest co-operation with the organs of the 
Inter-American system, in order to avoid duplica­
tion. Although every effort had been made to 
ascertain whether there would be such duplication, 
no evidence of it was brought before the Com­
mittee. 

If the Economic Commission for Latin America 
were established on the broad basis already out­
lined and unnecessary duplication with the work 
of the Inter-American system avoided, it would 
be able to do effective work, as a result of which 

78 

naitre !'opinion de l'Union panamericaine avant 
d'adopter des conclusions definitives. 

En consequence, la Commission Speciale a 
adresse des exemplaires d'un rapport preliminaire 
a l'Union panamericaine en lui demandant de 
faire des observations qui puissent la guider 
pour formuler ses propositions definitives. Dans 
son rapport preliminaire, la commission declarait 
qu' elle preconisait de recommander au Conseil 
economique et social de creer une Commission 
economique pour l' Amerique latine, analogue a la 
Commission economique pour l'Asie et !'Extreme­
Orient. Cette commission aurait pour tache prin­
cipale l'etude et la solution des problemes les plus 
urgents que pose, dans l' Amerique latine, le dese­
quilibre economique provoque par la guerre, 
notamment le relevement du niveau de l'activite 
economique des pays de l' Amerique latine, la 
fusion de l'economie de !'Amerique latine avec 
celle du reste du monde en vue de realiser la sta­
bilite economique du monde, la coordination de 
l'activite propre de la commission envisagee avec 
celle des autres organes regionaux ou techniques de 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies. 

Lorsqu'elle a elabore le mandat de la commission 
envisagee, la Commission speciale a pleinement 
tenu compte du point de vue de !'Union paname­
ricaine, afin d'assurer la coordination indispensable 
et la repartition des taches entre les organes 
competents de !'Organisation des Nations Unies 
et ceux de l'organisme interamericain. La commis­
sion n'a menage aucun effort pour eviter tout 
double emploi inutile avec les attributions des 
organes existant actuellement. 

Par une resolution en date du 15 janvier 1948, 
le Conseil interamericain economique et social, 
apres s'etre dument concerte avec tous les Etats 
membres de !'Union panamericaine, a declare 
qu'il se pronon<;ait en faveur de << la constitution 
immediate de la Commission economique pour 
I' Amerique latine envisagee », mais << en conser­
vant lui-meme l'autonomie et la competence 
dont il jouit actuellement dans le systeme inter­
americain ». 

Le Dr Alberto Lleras Camargo, directeur de 
l'Union panamericaine, dont la declaration figure 
dans les annexes jointes au rapport, a beaucoup 
aide la commission a aboutir a ses conclusions 
finales. 

Apres avoir examine a fond les facteurs se 
rapportant ala creation de la commission projetee 
ainsi que les vues de l'Union panamericaine, la 
Commission speciale est arrivee a la conclusion 
que cette commission devra porter une attention 
toute particuliere aux problemes que l'on peut 
qualifier d' « immediats » qui se posent en Ame­
rique latine, et a fait ressortir hi. necessite d'une 
cooperation des plus completes avec les organes 
du systeme inteni.mericain, a fin d' eviter tout 
double emploi. Bien qu'on se soit efforce par tons 
les moyens de decouvrir s'il y aurait double emploi, 
on n'a pas pu apporter a la commission la preuve 
qu'il s'en produirait. 

Si la Commission economique pour I' Amerique 
latine est etablie sur une base aussi large que celle 
qu'on a deja indiquee et s'il n'y a pas de double 
emploi inutile avec le systeme interamericain, elle 
pourra accomplir un travail efficace, qui permettra 



· the natural resources· of that region could be used 
most advantageously. · 

The economic structure of all countries had 
suffered considerably as a result of the war. ,in 
addition to those which were devastated by the 
war, there were others which had co-operated in 
the war .effort and which were affected by the 
repercussions of the conflict and lacked adequate 
means to develop and exploit their natural 
resources. The economic interdependence of all 
regions of the world made it necessary to give 
attention to both problems. The situation could 
be r~medied only by international co-operation 
and not by unilatera~ decisions. Latin American 
raw materials~ manufactured products and food 
supplies should be exchanged for financial aid, 
agricultural m;:tchinery, industrial plants and 
equipment. Such a policy would bolster the 
weak economy of those countries and permit the~p. 
to reach higher standards of living. It would also 
ensure larger production which would help Euro­
pean ·reconstruction and lessen the existing short­
ages in other areas of the world ; finally, it would 
increase the capacity of Latin American countries. 
. to import European products. On the other hand; 
neglect of the economic maladjustment of Latin 
America would have an effect on the maintenance 
of the stability and welfare of the world, and delay 
solutions to such problems as the resettlement of 
displaced persons. 

In conclusion, Mr. Stolk stated that the Com­
mittee's recommendations had been made in the 
form of a draft resolution for the Council's consi­
deration and expressed the hope that the Council 
would unanimously approve those recommenda­
tions for the setting up of an economic commission 
for Latin ·America. 

Mr. SANTA CRuz (Chile) remarked that the 
Venezuelan representative, who was also Chair­
man of the ad hoc Committee, had given a clear 
and comprehensive explanation of the Committee's 
report. Mter a thorough investigation, the Com­
mittee unanimously recommended the creation 
of the proposed economic commission for Latin 
America. He hoped that the Council would 
unanimously accept that recommendation. 

Mr. Santa Cruz said that when he had proposed, 
during the fifth session of the Council,1 the crea­
tion of an economic commission for Latin America, 
he had done so in view of two incontestable facts. 
One was the economic backwardness of Latin 
America, resulting in a low standard of living and 
in its inability to contribute as it should to the 
economic welfare of other parts of the world. The 
other was the grave economic and financial 
dislocation caused by the war. 

The Chilean representative said, with reference 
to the various documents which had been used by 
the ad hoc Committee in its work, that the economic 
situation in Latin America had deteriorated since 
those studies had been· compiled ; inflation was 
increasing, and the balance of . payments was 
steadily unfavourable. 

1 See Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, 
Fifth Session, 103rd meeting. 

79 

d'utiliser d'une maniere extremement profitable 
les .ressources naturelles de cette region. 

L'appareil economique de tousles pays a souffert 
dans u,ne mesure appreciable du fait de la guerre. 
A cote des pays qui ont ete devastes par1a guerre, 
il y a ceux qui ont coopere a !'effort de guerre et 
ont subi 1es repercussions du conflit arme et qui 
manquerit de moyens suffisants pour ~evelopper 
et exploiter leurs ressources 'naturelles. L'inter­
dependance economique de toutes les regions du 
monde oblige a porter attention a ces"deux pro­
hlemes. Ce n'est pas par des decisions unilaterales 
qu'on pourra remedier a cette situation - c'est 
seulement par la cooperation internationale qu'on 
y reussira. Les matieres premieres, les articles 
manufactures et les denrees alimentaires de 
I' Amerique latine devraient etre echanges contre 
une aide financiere, de I' outillage agricole, des 
machines et de l'outillage industriel. Cette poli­
tique renforcerait l'economie chancelante de ces 
pays et leur permettrait d'atteindre un niveau de 
vie plus eleve. De plus, elle assurerait un develop­
pement de la production qui aiderait a reconstruire 
!'Europe et a reduire les penuries qui existent 
actuellement dans d'autres regions ·du monde. 
Enfin, elle permettrait aux pays d'Amerique 
latine d'importer davantage de produits europeens. 
En revanche, negliger le desequilibre economique 
de !'Amerique latine compromettrait le maintien 
de la stabilite et du bien-etre du monde et retar­
derait la solution de problemes tels que celui 
de la reinstallation des personnes deplacees. 

En conclusion, M. Stolk dit que les recomman­
dations de la Commission speciale ont ete presen­
tees sous la forme d'un projet de resolution soumis 
a l'exameri du Conseil, et il exprime l'espoir :que 
le Conseil approuvera a l'unanimite ces recom­
·mandations, qui tendent a l'etablissement d'une 
Commission economique pour I' Amerique latine. 

M. SANTA CRuz (Chili) fait observer que le 
representant du Venezuela, qui a preside la 
Commission speciale, a donne sur le rapport de cette 
derniere des explications claires et completes. A 
la suite d'une etude approfondie, la commission 
a ete unanime a recommander la creation de la 
commission economique envisagee pour I' Amerique 
latin e. II espere que le Conseil adoptera cette recom­
mandation a l'unanimite. 

M. Santa Cruz expose que lorsqu'il a propose, 
a la cinquieme session du Conseil, de creer une 
Commission economique pour I' Amerique latine 1, 

il l'a fait en raison de deux faits incontestables. 
L'un est le retard de I' Amerique latine au point 
de vue economique, qui reduit ce pays a un niveau 
de vie peu eleve et le rend incapable de contribuer 
comme ille devrait au bien-etre des autres parties 
du monde en matiere economique ; l'autte est la 
grave desorganisation economique et financiere 
resultant de la guerre. 

Le representant du Chili dit que la situation 
economique de !'Amerique latine s'est aggravee 
depuis la date ou ont ete prepares les divers docu­
ments dont la Commission speciale s'est servie 
pour ses travaux : !'inflation s'accroit et Ia balance 
des comptes est en deficit constant. 

1 Voir'les Proces-verbaux officiels du Conseil economique 
el social, cinquieme session, 1038 seance. 

9 



Certain objections to the establishment of the 
proposed commission had been made at the fifth 
session of the Council. They were : lack of infor­
mation concerning the opinion of Latin American 
countries with regard to the proposal; the existence 
of functional commissions and the fact that 
problems of development should be treated 
differently from those of reconstruction ; possible 
duplication of the work of the Pan American 
Union. 

In reply to the first objection, Mr. Santa Cruz 
stated that the Secretary-General had been 
informed by the sixteen Latin American countries 
not then represented on the Economic and Social 
Council that they approved the proposal. More­
over, various Latin American delegations had 
expressed their approval both at the second ses­
sion of the General Assembly and to the Pan 
American Union. No doubt could exist that the 
twenty republics south of the Rio Grande were 
in favour of the creation of the proposed com­
mission. 

As regards the second objection, problems of 
reconstruction could not be dealt with separately 
from those of development. The world economic 
crisis was an indivisible problem. The economy 
of Latin America had been severely dislocated by 
the war; it was only just that it should receive 
assistance. The reports of the Economic Com­
missions for Europe and for Asia and the Far 
East supported the contention that no line could 
be drawn between reconstruction and develop­
ment. Reconstruction of the European economy, 
for example, did not mean a return to the condi­
tions of 1939, nor was reconstruction in the Far­
East intended to reproduce the conditions of the 
pre-war period, as the diversified programme 
outlined by the Economic Commission for Asia 
and the Far East in its report (E/606) 1 amply 
showed. Moreover, the Second Committee of 
the General Assembly, during its second session, 
had stressed the indivisibility of the problem of 
reconstruction of war-devastated areas and the 
development of under-developed regions. 

The General Assembly and numerous other 
organs of the United Nations showed a tendency 
to deal with regional problems by means of regional 
commissions, especially in view of the fact that 
functional commissions were incapable, at the 
moment, of dealing adequately with regional 
problems. 

As regards the objection that duplication with 
the work of the Pan American Union might result, 
that problem had received careful consideration 
by the ad hoc Committee, which had taken ap­
propriate measures, after consultation with the 
Pan American Union. There was no intention 
of encroaching upon the latter's field of activity. 
It was for that reason that paragraph 2 of the 
draft resolution proposed by the ad hoc Committee 
(E /630, chap. VII, section 5) had been inserted. 
Paragraph 16 of that resolution clearly showed 
the temporary character of the proposed com-

1 See Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, 
Sixth Session, Supplement No. 8. 

80 

La creation de la commission envisagee s'est 
heurtee a certaines objections a la cinquieme 
session du Conseil. On a argue du manque de ren­
seignements sur ce que l'on pensait de la propo­
sition dans les pays de l' Amerique latine. On a 
rappele !'existence des commissions techniques 
du Conseil, la necessite de traiter les problemes 
de mise en valeur autrement que ceux de recons­
truction et le risque de faire double emploi avec les 
travaux de l'Union panamericaine. 

En reponse a la premiere objection, M. Santa 
Cruz fait valoir que les seize pays d' Amerique 
latine qui, a l'epoque, n'etaient pas representes 
au Conseil economique et social, ont informe le 
Secretaire general qu'ils approuvaient le projet. 
En outre, les delegations de divers pays d' Ame­
rique latine y ont donne leur adhesion, non seule­
ment a l' Assemblee generale, lors de sa deuxieme 
session, mais egalement a l'Union panamericaine. 
11 est absolument hors de doute que les vingt 
republiques situees au sud du Rio Grande envisa­
gent favorablement la creation de la commission 
envisagee. 

En reponse a la deuxieme objection, l'orateur 
indique que l'on ne peut dissocier les questions de 
reconstruction de celles de developpement. Le 
probleme pose par la crise economique mondiale 
forme un tout indivisible. L'economie de !'Ame­
rique latine a ete profondement desorganisee par 
la guerre ; il n'est que juste de lui venir en aide. 
Les rapports presentes par la Commission econo­
mique pour l'Europe et la Commission economique 
pour l' Asie et !'Extreme-Orient permettent d'affir­
mer que l'on ne peut separer la reconstruction du 
developpement. C' est ainsi que la reconstruction 
economique de l'Europe ne signifie pas le retour 
aux conditions de 1939, et qu'en Extreme-Orient 
l'objet de la reconstruction n'est pas non plus 
de retablir la situation qui existait avant la 
guerre, comme le prouve abondamment le pro­
gramme varie trace par la Commission economique 
pour l' Asie et !'Extreme-Orient dans son rapport 
(E /606 1). En outre, au cours de la deuxieme 
session de l' Assemblee generale, la Deuxieme 
Commission a souligne l'indivisibilite du probleme 
de la reconstruction des regions devastees par la 
guerre et du developpement des regions insuffi­
samment developpees. 

L'Assemblee generale et bien d'autres organes 
de !'Organisation des Nations Unies montrent une 
certaine tendance a traiter les problemes regio­
naux au moyen de commissions regionales, notam­
ment en raison de l'impossibilite ou se trouvent 
actuellement les commissions techniques des' occu­
per comme ille faudrait des problemes regionaux. 

Quant a !'objection selon laquelle il y aurait 
danger de chevauchement entre l'activite de la 
commission envisagee et celle de l'Union paname­
ricaine, le probleme a ete etudie attentivement par 
la Commission speciale, qui a pris les mesures 
necessaires apres consultation de l'Union pan­
americaine. 11 n'est nullement question d'empieter 
sur les attributions de cet organisme, et c'est la 
l'objet du paragraphe 2 du projet de resolution 
propose par la Commission speciale (E /630, 
chap. VII, sect. 5). Le paragraphe 16 de la reso­
lution indique clairement le caractere temporaire 

1 Proces-verbaux officiels du Conseil economique et social, 
sixieme session, Suppllfment N° 8. 



mission, while paragraph 9 assured the co-opera­
tion of the Commission with the appropriate 
organ of the Pan American Union. Every effort 
had thus been made to prevent overlapping. 

Flexible terms of reference had been proposed 
for the economic commission for Latin America. 
The economic problems of Latin America were 
becoming increasingly urgent; effective action 
was required to enable Latin America to play 
a role in world economic reconstruction. The 
terms of reference of the proposed commission 
would have to be revised by the Council in 1951, 
at the same time as those of the two existing 
regional commissions. 

Perhaps the most urgent economic problem 
in the world was the reconstruction of Europe; 
it was a problem to which the United Nations 
had devoted a great deal of attention. Mr. Garcia 
Sayan, the Foreign Minister of Peru, in a recent 
statement (E f633), outlined a plan of immigration 
of Europeans to Latin America ; such a plan, 
along with economic and industrial development 
in Latin America, would aid in the solution of the 
problem of displaced persons. Latin America 
was anxious to contribute to European recon­
struction ; it was bound to Europe by ethnic and 
cultural ties; but full participation in European 
reconstruction was impossible until the economic 
productivity of Latin America had been raised. 

Mr. Santa Cruz further pointed out that the 
creation of the economic commission for Latin 
America would not only greatly further the 
economic development of Latin America, but 
would strengthen the faith of its population in 
international co-operation and in the United 
Nations. 

Mr. MuNIZ (Brazil) welcomed the report of the 
ad hoc Committee, and congratulated it on its 
objective presentation of the problems involved, 
and on the attention it had devoted to the danger 
of duplication. The Brazilian delegation con­
sidered the report to be a balanced and sound 
document. 

He recalled doubts expressed· in the Council 
concerning the principle of regional commissions, 
but pointed out that the general attitude towards 
that principle had changed ; it had been recognized 
that urgent short-term problems were best dealt 
with by the regional approach, and that that 
could be done without encroaching upon the 
domain of the functional commissions, which 
operated on a world-wide basis. There was grow­
ing awareness in the world of the need for regional 
co-operation, which should supersede regional 
competition. 

The economy of Latin America, as the report 
of the ad hoc Committee showed, was in urgent 
need of regional planning for its proper develop­
ment. As Latin America produced a narrow 
range of goods, and as it depended on foreign 
markets for the export of its raw materials, it was 
extremely sensitive to fluct1,1ations originating 
abroad. A concrete effort for industrialization, 

81 

de la commissiOn envisagee, tandis que le para­
graphe 9 assure la collaboration de la commission 
avec l'organe approprie de !'Union panamericaine. 
Tout a done ete fait pour empecher qu'il y ait 
double emploi. · 

Le projet prevoit pour la commission ecorio­
mique un mandat offrant une certaine elasticite. 
Les problemes economiques de I' Amerique latine 
ont un caractere de plus en plus urgent : il est 
necessaire d'agir efficacement pour permettre a 
!'Amerique latine de jouer un role dans la recons­
truction economique du monde. II appartiendra 
au Conseil de reviser, en 1951, le mandat de la 
commission envisagee, en meme temps que celui 
de chacune des deux commissions regionales 
existant actuellement. 

Le probleme economique le plus urgent dans 
le monde est peut-etre celui de la reconstruction de 
!'Europe. C'est une question sur laquelle !'Organi­
sation des Nations Unies a porte une attention 
considerable. M. Garcia Sayan, Ministre des affaires 
etrangeres du Perou, a esquisse, dans une recente 
declaration (E /633) un plan d'immigration d'Eu­
ropeens en Amerique latine. Un tel projet, mene 
de pair avec le developpement economique et 
industriel de I' Amerique latine, aiderait a resoudre 
le probleme des personnes deplacees. L' Amerique 
latine desire vivement apporter sa cooperation 
a la reconstruction de !'Europe, car elle est unie a 
cette partie du monde par des liens ethniques et 
culturels - mais elle ne pourra pas participer 
pleinement a cette muvre tant que sa capacite 
de production economique n'aura pas ete aug­
mentee. 

En outre, M. Santa Cruz fait observer que la 
creation de la Commission economique pour 
I' Amerique latine ne constituerait pas seulement 
une importante contribution au developpement 
economique de I' Amerique latine, mais raffermi­
rait aussi la confiance qu'ont les peuples qui 
l'habitent dans la cooperation internationale et 
dans !'Organisation des Nations Unies. ' 

M. MuNIZ (Bresil) accueille avec faveur le 
rapport de la Commission speciale et felicite la 
commission de la presentation objective des 
problemes traites ainsi que de !'attention qu'elle a 
consacree au risque de double emploi. La dele­
gation bresilienne estime que le rapport est un 
document bien equilibre et serieux. 

M. Muniz rappelle les doutes exprimes au Conseil 
quant au principe des commissions regionales, 
mais il fait observer que !'attitude generale a 
change a l'egard de ce principe : on a reconnu 
que les problemes immediats ayant un caract~re 
d'urgence etaient mieux traites si on les abordait 
sur le plan regional et que I' on pouvait agir ainsi 
sans empieter sur le domaine des commissions 
techniques du Conseil, qui agissent sur le plan 
mondial. On se rend compte de plus en plus dans 
le monde du besoin de la cooperation regionale 
qui devrait se substituer a la concurrence regionale. 

Comme le montre le rapport de la Commission 
speciale, l'economie de !'Amerique latine a un 
besoin pressant d'une planification regionale pour 
se developper comme il convient. Du fait que 
I' Amerique latine a une gamme restreinte de pro­
duits et qu'elle depend des marches etrangers 
pour !'exportation de ses matieres premieres, elle 
est extremement sensible aux fluctuations pro-



diversification of production and economic stabili­
zation was required to remedy that situation. 

The ad hoc Committee's report called attention 
to another problem in Latin America, that of 
dislocation caused by the war. The wartime 
expenditure of capital equipment at an abnormal 
rate, the resulting depletion of capital stock and 
jnability to replace it owing to inflation were 
problems of a regional character which required 
study in their own setting. 

Any cleavage between reconstruction and 
development was an artificial one; nevertheless, 
it might be said that Latin America, as a result 
of the war, needed reconstruction as well as 
development of its economy. The proposed com­
mission should concentrate on problems caused 
by the war; its planning, while on a regional basis, 
should take into consideration the global character 
of modern economy. 

The Brazilian delegation noted with satisfaction 
the care taken by the ad hoc Committee that the 
proposed commission should not duplicate the 
work of the Pan American Union. It supported 
the resolution proposed by the Committee. 

Mr. Muniz expressed the hope that the interest 
taken by the Economic and Social Council in the 
economic problems of Latin America would bear 
the desired fruit, and that another step would 
thus be taken in tl;le progress towards an economi-
cally adjusted world. · 

Mr. THORN (New Zealand) said that, while his 
. delegation had always recognized that economic 
backwardness in any part of the world had an 
adverse effect on the general welfare, it had felt 
that the Chilean proposal to establish an Economic 
Commission for Latin America, made at the fifth 
session of the Council, required thorough investiga­
tion. 

There had been three reasons for that attitude. 
The Economic Commissions for Europe. and for 
Asia and the Far East had been established as 
emergency measures to remedy devastation caused 
by the war. As Latin America had not suffered 
such devastation, the Chilean proposal involved 
a new principle, all implications of which should 
be studied before a decision was taken. 

The second reason had been the desire of the 
New Zealand delegation to assure co-ordination 
and to avoid duplication of effort with existing 
specialized agencies. 

The third reason was that considerable expen­
diture was involved ; if the establishment of a 
commission for Latin America led to the establish­
ment of a similar commission for the Middle East, 
the annual cost of the two coiDIDisstons, as 
computed by the Secretariat, would be about 
$u.s. 500,000. . 

The New Zealand delegation had supported the 
establishment of the ad hoc Committee on the 
proposal for an economic commission for Latin 

82 

venant de l'etranger. Pour remedier a cette situa­
tion, il est necessaire de faire un effort concret 
pour industrialiser la region en question, diversifier 
sa production et stabiliser son economie. 

Le rapport de la Commission speciale appelle 
!'attention sur un autre probh~me qui se pose en 
Amerique latine : celui de la desorganisation 
causee par la guerre. La consommation anormale 
de capitaux materiels pendant la guerre, la dimi­
nution du capital national qui en est resultee et 
l'impossibilite de le remplacer a cause de !'in­
flation, sont des problemes de caractere regional 
qui demandent a etre etudies dans leur propre 
cadre. 

Toute separation entre la reconstruction et le 
developpement est artificielle. Neanmoins, on 
pent dire que !'Amerique latine, par suite de la 
guerre, a besoin de reconstituer son economie aussi 
bien que de la developper. La commission envi­
sagee devrait concentrer son attention sur les 
problemes resultant de la guerre : sa planifica­
tion, tout en etant etablie sur le plan regional, 
doit tenir compte du caractere universe! de l'eco­
nomie moderne. 

La delegation bresilienne note avec satisfaction 
le soin pris par la Commission speciale pour que 
la commission envisagee ne fasse pas double 
emploi avec l'Union panamericaine. Elle appuie 
la resolution proposee par la commission. 

M. Muniz exprime l'espoir que !'interet que le 
Conseil economique et social porte aux probleriles 
economiques de l' Amerique latine donnera les 
resultats souhaites et qu'un pas sera ainsi fait 
dans la voie de l'ajustement de l'economie mon­
dia]e. 

M. THORN (Nouvelle-Zelande) dit que, bien que 
sa delegation ait toujours reconnu que les pays 
dont l'economie est en retard, dans quelque partie 
du monde qu'ils se trouvent, ont une influence 
defavorable sur le bien-etre general, elle a estime 
que la proposition d'etablir une Commission 
economique pour !'Amerique latine, faite par la 
delegation chilienne a la cinquieme session du 
Conseil, necessitait une enquete approfondie. 

Trois raisons ont motive cette attitude. La 
Commission economique pour !'Europe et la 
Commission economique pour l' Asie et !'Extreme­
Orient ont ete creees a titre de mesures d'urgence 
pour remedier aux devastations causees par la 
guerre. Comme l' Amerique latine n'a pas subi ces 
devastations, la proposition chilienne pose un 
principe nouveau, dont toutes les consequences 
devraient etre etudiees avant qu'une decision soit 
prise. 

La deuxieme raison est le desir de la delegation 
de la Nouvelle-Zelande d'assurer la coordination 
et d'eviter les doubles emplois avec les institutions 
specialisees existantes. 

La troisieme raison est que le projet entrainera 
une depense assez importante. Si la creation d'une 
commission pour l' Amerique latirie conduit a 
etablir une commission analogue pour le Moyen­
Orient, le c01lt annuel de ces deux commissions, 
d'apres les calculs du Secretariat, s'elevera a 
500.000 dollars. 

La delegation de la Nouvelle-zelande a appuye 
la creation de la Commission Speciale chargee 
d' etudier le proj et de creation d'une Commission 



America. However, as that Committee had been 
entrusted only with the question of deciding 
whether or not a commission should be established, 
the New Zealand delegation had submitted a draft 
resolution which had been adopted by the Council 
as its resolution 72 (V), asking the Economic and 
Employment Commission to examine the general 
questions involved in the creation of regional 
economic commissions. The adoption of that 
resolution did not, of course, mean that the Council 
had to postpone its decision with respect to the 
economic commission for Latin America until the 
report of the Economic and Employment Com­
mission was available. Mr. Thorn felt, however, 
that a study by the Council of the problem of 
co-ordinating the activities of the specialized 
agencies and of the functional commissions with 
those of the regional commissions was essential. 
The Charter of the United Nations envisaged 
international functional organizations as the basis 
for action in the economic field; regional com­
missions should be regarded as being in the nature 
of an experiment. 

The New Zealand delegation held that regional 
commissions should be advisory rather than exe­
cutive in character; they should merely make 
recommendations on policy to the Council, leav­
ing the action to be performed by the specialized 
agencies. 

While the New Zealand delegation gave its 
general support to the recommendations of the 
ad hoc Committee, Mr. Thorn wished to call the 
Council's attention to several points in that Com­
mittee's report. 

Paragraph 1 (a) of the terms of reference of the 
proposed commission (E /630, chap. VII, sec­
tion 5) stated that the commission was designed 
to cope with " urgent economic problems arising 
out of the war". Mr. Thorn pointed out that 
such problems were not peculiar to Latin America, 
and suggested that the fundamental problem 
there was rather one of co-ordination and improve­
ment of administration. With regard to para­
graph 5 of the terms of reference, Mr. Thorn ques­
tioned the desirability of granting the proposed 
commission power to make recommendations 
directly to the specialized agencies. The grant­
ing of such power to the Economic Commissions 

. for Europe and for Asia and the Far East had 
1 been motivated by the extreme urgency of the 

situation, a condition not present in the case under 
consideration. The power to make recommenda­
tions and to initiate studies through the specialized 
agencies should not be delegated to a multiplicity 
of commissions or sub-commissions. The Council 
must recognize its responsibilities towards the 
specialized agencies, and avoid pressure on those 
agencies by regional commissions. 

In conclusion, Mr. Thorn praised the valuable 
work performed by the ad hoc Committee in 
providing a background of factual material which 
simplified the task of the Council, and stated that 
his delegation would vote in favour of the establish­
ment of the proposed commission. 

83 

economique pour I' Amerique latin e. Cependant, 
comme cette commission a ete chargee d'etudier 
seulement la question de l'opportunite de la crea­
tion d'une commission, la delegation neo-zelan­
daise a presente un projet de resolution, qui a ete 
adopte par le Conseil en tant que resolution 72 (V), 
demandant a la Commission des questions econo­
miques et de l'emploi d'examiner les questions 
generales soulevees par la creation de commissions 
economiques regionales. L'adoption de cette reso­
lution ne signifie naturellement pas que le Conseil 
doive remettre sa decision relative a la Commission 
economique pour !'Amerique latine jusqu'au 
moment oille rapport de la Commission des ques­
tions economiques et de l'emploi sera pret. 
M. Thorn estime cependant qu'il est indispensable 
que le Conseil etudie le probh~me de la coordination 
des activites des institutions specialisees et des 
commissions techniques avec celles des commis­
sions regionales. La Charte des Nations Unies 
envisage les organisations internationales tech­
niques comme devant servir de bases a !'action 
dans le domaine economique ; les commissions 
regionales doivent etre regardees comme consti­
tuant un essai. 

La delegation neo-zelandaise estime que les 
commission regionales doivent avoir un caractere 
consultatif plut6t qu'executif. Elle devraient se 
horner a presenter au Conseil des recommanda­
tions sur la politique a suivre, le soin d'agir etant 
laisse aux institutions specialisees. , 

Bien que la delegation de la Nouvelle-Zelande 
ait appuye d'une maniere generale les recomman­
dations de la Commission speciale, M. Thorn tient 
a appeler !'attention du Conseil sur plusieurs points 
du rapport de la commission. 

L'alinea a du paragraphe 1 du mandat de la 
commission envisagee (E /630, chap. VII, sect. 5) 
dispose que ]a commission a ete creee pour s'atta­
quer aux (( prohlemes economiques urgents nes 
de la guerre ». M. Thorn fait observer que ces 
problemes ne sont pas particuliers a l' Amerique 
latine, et emet !'opinion que le probleme fonda­
mental de cette region est plut6t une question 
de coordination et d'amelioration de !'adminis­
tration. En ce qui concerne le paragraphe 5 du 
mandat, M. Thorn se demande s'il est souhaitable 
d'accorder ala commission envisagee le pouvoir de 
faire directement des recommandations aux insti­
tutions specialisees. L' octroi de ce pouvoir a la 
Commission economique pour !'Europe et a la 
Commission economique pour l'Asie et !'Extreme­
Orient a ete motive par !'extreme urgence de la 
situation - or cette condition n'existe pas dans 
le cas en question. Le pouvoir de faire des recom­
mandations et d'entreprendre des etudes par l'en­
tremise des institutions specialisees ne doit pas 
etre delegue a une quantite de commissions ou de 
sous-commissions. Le Conseil doit reconnaitre ses 
obligations envers les institutions specialisees et 
eviter que des commissions regionales exercent 
une pression sur ces institutions. 

En conclusion, M. Thorn fait l'eloge du travail 
extremement utile que la Commission speciale a 
accompli en fournissant des renseignements d'ordre 
general fondes sur des faits, ce qui simplifiera 
la tache du Conseil. Il declare que sa delegation 
votera en faveur de la creation de la commission 
proposee. 



/ 

Mr. AzKOUL (Lebanon), speaking as a member 
of the ad hoc Committee, said he favoured the 
setting up of an economic commission for Latin 
America. The Economic and Social Council 
should set up economic commissions in those 
areas of the world that needed them. 

The distinction drawn between the needs of 
reconstruction and those of economic development 
was fictitious. The concept of reconstruction 
included that of development, since the various 
parts of the world were interdependent and one 
region helped another. 

In regard to the functional commissions, he 
stated that they could operate successfully only 
in a world which was sufficiently developed 
economically. It was essential, therefore, to 
encourage the development of less developed areas, 
in order that they might contribute to the general 
welfare. 

Accordingly, the setting up of an economic 
commission for Latin America was necessary for 
world recovery. 

Mr. DE CLERMONT-TONNERRE (France) said 
that, thought the French delegation had approved 
the setting up of the Economic Commission for 
Europe and the Economic Commission for Asia 
and the Far East, as temporary commissions 
intended to study exceptional problems arising 
from the war, it originally had expressed doubts 
as to the general advisability of setting up regional 
economic commissions. In regard to the setting 
up of an economic commission for Latin America, 
however, those doubts had been dispelled. 

Indeed, the discussions in the ad hoc Committee 
had shown that independently of the permanent 
problems with which the Latin American countries 
were confronted, those countries were also faced 
with exceptional difficulties caused by the war. 

The permanent difficulties were well known. 
The Latin American countries had an under­
developed economy, little capital, and limited 
technical means. Furthermore, their economies 
were competitive rather than complementary, 
which prevented them from helping one another. 
Those problems were not new, and the Pan 
American Union was endeavouring to solve them. 
Mr. Lleras Camargo, Director-General of the Pan 
American Union, had explained that clearly to 
the Committee. 

Besides those permanent problems, however, 
there were exceptional problems which no existing 
body could solve. 

The Latin American countries had suffered from 
the war both directly, owing to the inflation caused 
by the excess of their exports over their imports 
during the war and the wearing out of their capital 
equipment, and also indirectly, owing to the 
difficulty encountered in re-establishing trade 
with Europe. In 1938, 50 per cent of their exports 
had been directed to Europe, whence they had 
received 45 per cent of their imports. That trade 
had been considerably reduced. Furthermore, 
Latin America suffered from the rise in prices on 
the world market. 

84 

M. AzKOUL (Liban), parlant en tant que membre 
de la Commission speciale, se prononce en faveur 
de la creation d'une Commission economique pour 
!'Amerique latirie. Le Conseil economique et social 
devrait constituer des commissions economiques 
dans les regions du monde ou elles sont necessaires. 

La distinction etablie entre le domaine de la 
reconstruction et celui du developpement econo­
mique ne se justifie pas. La notion de reconstruc­
tion englobe celle de developpement, etant donne 
que les diverses parties du monde sont solidaires 
et se pretent mutuellement assistance. 

En ce qui concerne les commissions techniques, 
M. Azkoul declare qu'elles ne peuvent fonctionner 
efficacement que dans un monde ayant atteint 
un developpement economique suffisant. II est 
done essentiel de favoriser le developpement des 
regions pen developpees afin de mettre celles-ci 
en mesure de contribuer a la prosperite generale. 

En consequence, la creation d'une Commission 
economique pour l' Amerique latine est indis­
pensable au relevement de l'economie mondiale. 

M. DE CLERMONT-TONNERRE (France) declare 
que la delegation fran<;aise, bien qu'elle ait ap­
prouve la creation d'une Commission economique 
pour !'Europe et d'une Commission economique 
pour l' Asie et !'Extreme-Orient, en tant que 
commissions temporaires chargees d'etudier les 
problemes exceptionnels decoulant de la guerre, 
a, des le debut, exprime certains doutes sur 
I' opportunite de la creation de commissions eco­
nomiques regionales. En ce qui concerne la crea­
tion d'une Commission economique pour !'Ame­
rique latine, ces doutes se sont toutefois dissipes. 

II ressort en effet des discussions qui ont en 
lieu au sein de la Commission speciale qu'inde­
pendamment des problemes permanents avec 
lesquels les pays de !'Amerique latine sont aux 
prises, ces pays ont egalement a faire face a des 
difficultes exceptionnelles nees de la guerre. 

Les difficultes permanentes ne sont que trop 
connues. Les pays de !'Amerique latine ont nne 
economie pen developpee, ils ne disposent que de 
capitaux restreints et de moyens techniques 
limites. En outre, leurs economies se font concur­
rence au lieu de se completer, ce qui les empeche de 
se soutenir mutuellement. Ces problemes ne sont 
pas nouveaux, et l'Union panamericaine s'efforce 
de les resoudre. M. Lleras Camargo, directeur 
general de l'Union panamericaine, a fourni a ce 
sujet a la commission toutes les precisions desi­
rables. 

Outre ces problemes permanents, il existe 
egalement des problemes exceptionnels qu'aucun 
organisme existant actuellement ne pent resoudre. 

Les pays de l' Amerique latine ont ete eprouves 
par la guerre non seulement directement, en raison 
de !'inflation provoquee par l'excedent de leurs 
exportations par rapport a leurs importations pen­
dant la guerre et de l'usure de leur outillage, 
mais aussi indirectement, en raison des difficultes 
auxquelles s'est heurtee la reprise de leurs rela­
tions commerciales avec !'Europe. En 1938, 
50 pour 100 de leurs exportations allaient a !'Eu­
rope, d'ou provenaient 45 pour 100 de leurs 
importations. Ces echanges commerciaux se sont 
considerablement red nits. En outre, l' Amerique 
latine se ressent de la hausse des prix mondiaux. 



Since those problems were closely related to 
world economic problems in general, they could 
not be solved within the framework of a strictly 
regional co-operation. 

The French delegation had originally feared an 
excessive splitting up of the study of economic 
problems. But that was in the nature of things, 
and not caused by the setting up of regional com­
missions. Nations came together to find ways 
and means of solving their common difficulties. 
Bilateral and multilateral agreements were con­
cluded. Such reactions were only normal. Bila­
teral agreements were better than isolation, 
:multilateral agreements better than bilateral 
agreements and regional agreements better than 
multilateral ones. Those in their turn paved 
the way for a free exchange of commodities 
throughout the world. 

To reach the last objective, however, a solution 
could be sought only within the framework of the 
United Nations. 

Mr. de Clermont-Tonnerre quoted the words 
of Mr. Santa Cruz, who had said, at the fifth ses­
sion of the Council, that the various parts of the 
world were interdependent. 

The economic problems of Latin America could 
be solved in relation to the problems of the world 
in general, but the study of regional problems in 
relation to world problems could be undertaken 
only by a commission set up by the United 
Nations. 

Before the Second World War, the trade 
balance of the Latin American countries had 
been favourable with Europe and unfavourable 
with the United States of America. They had 
been able to balance their trade deficit with the 
United States with currency obtained from excess 
exports to Europe. That was no longer the case. 
A regional commission would be in a good posi­
tion to study such problems and might perhaps 
reach the conclusion that the solution for the 
existing difficulties could be found only if the 
principal European currencies were again convert­
ible. 

The French delegation would support the set­
ting up of an economic commission for Latin 
America for those reasons. The Economic and 
Social Council should see that it did not overlap 
or duplicate the work of existing bodies. 

The French delegation would also consider 
favourably the proposal to set up an ad hoc Com­
mittee to study the question of the establishment 
of an economic commission for the Middle East. 

In conclusion, Mr. de Clermont-Tonnerre drew 
attention to a merely formal aspect of the ques­
tion. The Economic Commission for Europe and 

· the Economic Commission for Asia and the Far 
East had dealt with a great number of social 
questions, such as immigration, unemployment 
and housing. That would probably be the case 
with the economic commission for Latin America. 

Etant donne l'etroite interdependance de ces 
problemes et de !'ensemble des problemes econo­
miques mondiaux, on ne saurait les resoudre dans 
le cadre d'un systeme de cooperation strictement 
regional e. 

La delegation fran<;aise a redoute tout d'abord 
que l' etude des problemes economiques ne soit 
confiee a un nombre excessif d' organes. Mais 
c'est la une situation qui decoule de la nature 
meme des chases et qui ne resulte pas de la crea­
tion de commissions regionales. Les nations se 
sont groupees afin de trouver les moyens de sur­
manter leurs difficultes communes. Des accords 
bilateraux et multilateraux ont ete conclus. 
Pareilles reactions sont absolument normales. 
Des accords bilateraux valent mieux que l'isole­
ment, des accords multilateraux valent mieux que 
des accords bilateraux, et des accords regionaux 
sont encore preferables aux accords multilateraux. 
Ils prepareront la voie au libre echange des 
marchandises dans le monde entier. 

On ne saurait toutefois, pour atteindre ce der­
nier objectif, chercher de solution ailleurs que dans 
le cadre de !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 

M. de Clermont-Tonnerre cite les paroles pro­
noncees par M. Santa Cruz, qui a declare a la 
cinquieme session du Conseil que les differentes 
parties du monde etaient interdependantes. 

Les problemes economiques de !'Amerique latine 
peuvent etre resolus en relation avec les problemes 
mondiaux, mais !'etude des problemes n~gionaux 
consideres par rapport aux problemes mondiaux 
doit necessairement etre confiee a une commission 
creee par !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 

85 

Avant la guerre, la balance commerciale des 
pays de !'Amerique latine etait, par rapport a 
!'Europe, favorable, et, par rapport aux Etats­
Unis d'Amerique, defavorable. Ces pays ont pu 
combler leur deficit commercial a l'egard des Etats­
Unis a l'aide des devises que leur procurait l'exce­
dent de leurs exportations en Europe, mais il 
n'en est plus ainsi actuellement. Une commission 
regionale se trouverait bien placee pour etudier 
ces problemes, et il se pourrait qu' elle aboutisse 
a la conclusion que l'on ne pourra surmonter 
les difficultes actuelles qu'en retablissant la con­
vertibilite des monnaies des principaux pays 
europeens. 

C'est pour ces raisons que la delegation fran­
<;aise appuie la creation d'une Commission eco­
nomique pour l' Amerique latin e. Le Conseil eco­
nomique et social devra veiller a ce qu'il ne se 
produise aucun chevauchement ou double emploi 
avec l'activite des organes existants. 

La delegation fran<;aise accueillerait egalement 
avec satisfaction la proposition d'instituer une 
commission Speciale pour etudier la question de 
la creation d'une Commission economique pour 
le Moyen-Orient. 

Pour conclure, M. de Clermont-Tonnerre attire 
!'attention sur un aspect purement formel de la 
question. La Commission economique pour !'Eu­
rope et la Commission economique pour I' Asie 
et !'Extreme-Orient se sont occupees d'un grand 
nombre de problemes sociaux, tels que !'immi­
gration;· le- chomage et la question du Iogement. 
II en sera probablement de meme en ce qui con­
cerne la Commission economique pour I' Amerique 
iatine. 



The French delegation therefore believed that 
such commissions should be called " regional 
economic and social commissions". It would 
revert to that point later. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 

ONJ3l HUNDRED 
AND THIRTY-THIRD MEETING 

Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on Monday, 9 February 1948, at 3 p.m. 

President : Mr. Charles MALIK (Lebanon) 

23. Report of the " ad hoc " Committee 
on the proposal for an economic 
commission for Latin America (E/ 
630 and E/630/Add.t) [continued] 

GENERAL DEBATE (concluded) 

Mr. DAVIDSON (Canada) explained the hesita­
tion still felt by his delegation in regard to the 
establishment of regional commissions, the reasons 
for which had already been outlined during 
previous sessions of the Council. The Canadian 
delegation had concluded, however, that the 
members of the Council were taking the step of 
establishing a regional commission with a full 
realization of the consequences of their action. 

The fundamental reason for the establishment 
of a commission was the existence of a basic need. 
It could not be denied that the Latin American 
countries needed assistance, as they were economi­
cally under-developed, but their pos~tion was not 
at all the same as that of the war-devastated areas 
of Europe and the Far East. The Latin American 
countries had, by their own efforts, made sub­
stantial progress in the development of their 
economies during the war years. Figures given 
in the Economic Report Salient Features of the 
World Economic Situation, 1946-1947 1 bore 
evidence to that fact. For example, whereas 
the countries of Europe and the Far East had 
suffered greatly in the matter of production of 
fuel and energy, the production of Latin American 
countries in 1947 was 182 per cent of that in 1938. 
It was of course essential that those countries 
should be enabled to maintain the progress they 
had made, but the figures showed plainly that 
the Council had been right thus far in giving 
priority to the needs of Europe and the Far East. 

The establishment of an economic commission 
for Latin America constituted a departure from 
the action taken by the Council in establishing 
commissions for Europe and for Asia and the Far 

1 United Nations Publications, Sales No. : 1948.1I.C.1. 

86 

La delegation franc;aise estirne done qu!il y 
aurait lieu d'appeler ces commissions « commis­
sions economiques et sociales regionales ». Elle 
reviendra sur ce point ulterieurement. 

La seance est levee a 13 heures. 

CENT TRENTE-TROISIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le lundi 9 jevrier 1948, a 15 heures 

President : M. Charles MALIK (Liban) 

23. Rapport de la Commission speciale 
chargee d'etudier le projet de crea­
tion d'une Commission economique 
pour l' Amerique latine (E/630 et 
E/630/Add.t) [suite] 

DiscussioN GENERALE (fin) 

M. DAVIDSON (Canada) explique pourquoi sa 
delegation continue a faire des reserves au sujet 
de la creation de commissions regionales, reserves 
dont les motifs ont deja ete exposes a des sessions 
anterieures du Conseil. Toutefois, la delegation 
canadienne est arrivee a la conclusion que les 
membres du Conseil prennent la decision de creer 
une commission regionale en ayant pleinement 
conscience des consequences de leur acte. 

La raison fondamentale pour laquelle on cree 
une commission est !'existence d'un besoin essen­
tiel. On ne saurait nier que les pays d' Amerique 
latine aient besoin d'aide, puisqu'ils sont insuffi­
samment developpes du point de vue economique, 
mais leur situation n'est pas du tout la meme 
que celle des regions d'Europe et d'Extreme­
Orient qui ont ete devastees par Ia guerre. Les 
pays d' Amerique latine ont realise, grace a leurs 
propres efforts, des progres substantiels en matiere 
de developpement economique pendant les annees 
de guerre. Les chiffres que donne le rapport eco­
nomique intitule Aspects caracteristiques de la 
situation economique mondiale, 1945-1947 1 le 
prouvent. Par exemple, alors que les pays d'Eu­
rope et d'Extreme-Orient ont vu diminuer dans 
de fortes proportions leur production de com­
bustible et d'energie electrique, la production 
des pays d' Amerique latine dans ce domaine 
en 1947 atteignit 182 pour 100 du chiffre de 1938. 
II est evidemment indispensable que ces pays 
soient en mesure de maintenir les progres qu'ils 
ont realises, mais les chiffres montrent clairement 
que le Conseil a eu raison jusqu'ici de donner 
la priorite aux besoins de !'Europe et de !'Extreme­
Orient. 

Creer une Commission economique pour l' Ame­
rique latine, c'est s'ecarter de la ligne de conduite 
que le Conseil a adoptee en creant une Commission 
pour I' Europe et une Commission pour l' Asie et 

1 Publications des Nations Unies, N° de vente : 1948.1I. 
C.1. 


